
1 | P a g e  

ACCOMACK COUNTY WETLANDS MINUTES OF MAY 26, 2022 

At a meeting of the Accomack County Wetlands Board held on the 28TH day of APRIL 2022 in the Accomack County 

Administration Building Board Chambers, Room #104, in Accomac, Virginia. 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

MEMBERS PRESENT AND ABSENT 

Wetland Board Members Present 

Mr. Earl Frederick, Chairman 

Mr. George Ward, Vice Chairman 

Mr. Gene Wayne Taylor 

Mr. T. Lee Byrd 

Mr. Timothy Getek 

 
Others Present: 

Mr. G. Christian Guvernator IV, PE, Director Environmental Programs 

Ms. Chontese Ridley, Environmental Programs Permit Specialist 

Mrs. Beth Nunnally, Environmental Planner II 

Mr. Benjamin Nettleton, Virginia Marine Resources Commission (VMRC) 

 
DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM 

There being a quorum, Chairman Frederick called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. 

 
2. ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

On a motion made by Mr. Taylor and seconded by Mr. Ward, the Wetlands Board voted to 

approve the amended to the agenda. 

 
3. MINUTES 

A. April 28, 2022 

 
On a motion made by Mr. Getek and seconded by Mr. Byrd, the Wetlands Board voted to 

approve the March 2022 minutes with modifications. 

4. OLD BUSINESS 

A. Change in Compensation Fees 

 

Mr. Frederick stated with the changes that had been made to the regulations for mitigation fees, they 

wanted to make sure that everyone heard it at least once. 

 

Mr. Chris Guvernator, Environmental Programs, appeared before the Wetlands Board and was 

sworn in by Chairman Frederick 
 

Mr. Guvernator said this was a repeat from last month just to make sure it gets into the record. 

 

Mr. Guvernator stated that on April, 20, 2022 the Board of Supervisors voted to change the 

compensation fees. Vegetated Wetlands increase to $18.00 per square foot and Non Vegetated 

was established at $18.00 per square foot. 



2 | P a g e  

The changes went into effect on April, 20, 2022 and effects all permit issued after that date. 

 

Mr. Guvernator added that notices had been sent out to active JPAs and agents. Also, the County 

Attorney has stated that there was no "grandfathering" of pending applications and no delayed 

effective date in the BOS motion language. 

 

Any pending applications are subject to the new fees. 

 

Mr. Guvernator said, for this month, it was staff’s believes that current applicants should be 

given the option to continue their application after the public hearing. This would allow them 

time to consider the impacts of those changes if they wish. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

A. Chincoteague Hotel LC (Key West Cottages) VMRC# 2022-0005 
Dredging a 15,575 feet area to a -4.0 elevation to allow for access of boats to a new cottage project 

 

Mr. Chris McCabe, (Coastal Compliance Solutions), appeared before the Wetlands Board on 

behalf of the applicant and was sworn in by Chairman Frederick. 

 

Mr. McCabe said that he sent in an addendum to the application so he had a new site plan sheet 

that showed the limits of non-vegetated wetlands mudflat area. He added they would be 

compensating for that area under the new fee change. 

 

Mr. Frederick asked Mr. Guvernator if he had received it, [the new site plan sheet], and Mr. 

Guvernator said no. 

 

Mr. McCabe said that he did not submit it to VMRC and that he had only emailed it to Ms. Beth 

Nunnally, but that he could give the Board members a copy to look at for clarification. 

 

Mr. McCabe said there was a section they had calculated that would be considered non- 

vegetated. It was 98 square feet. 

 

Mr. McCabe stated the application he submitted was essentially for dredging of approximately 

1,200 cubic yards to be deposited in the Chincoteague town dredge disposal area. 

 

Mr. McCabe said the total impact area was 15,574 square feet, and that the work would be done 

via mechanical dredging. 

 

In short, Mr. McMcabe the application was to dredge to -4 mean low water and hauling off site. 

Mr. McCabe said he believed the compensation to be $1,764.00 for the non-vegetated wetlands. 

CHAIRMAN FREDERICK OPENED THE FLOOR TO PUBLIC COMMENT 

Mr. Frederick asked if there was anyone who wanted to comment on application 2022-0005. 

 
Mr. Harry Edward Deitch, Jr., (adjacent property owner), appeared before the Wetlands Board 

and was sworn in by Chairman Frederick. 

 
Mr. Deitch gave the board members three photos that showed the area he was concerned 

about. He added that he had no major objections, but that he did have a request. 



3 | P a g e  

Mr. Deitch said that during the bulk-heading that was previously done by the applicant, a lot 

of mud and debris that were dug up was left behind. 

 
Mr. Deitch said that his was request was that they remove the stuff that is immediately in front 

of the Chincoteague Town drain as well as what was adjacent to his dock. 

 
Mr. Deitch said he had spoken to Mr. Justin Miller of Comfort Suites and he, (Justin), told 

him that it was on his property so they did not put it in the permit. Mr. Deitch said he told Mr. 

Miller that it was put there during the process of the bulkhead going in. 

 
Mr. Deitch also wanted to point out that him and his wife, as of April 2, 2021, received a 

permit to install a pier to the channel. He said that it would be immediately adjacent to the 

area [proposed] to be dredged. 

 
Mr. Deitch said he spoke with Mr. Dean Fisher about doing the work and that it would be in 

Mr. Fisher’s and the applicant’s best interest if the two projects would coordinate. 

 
Mr. Frederick asked Mr. Deitch to read the VMRC# of his approved permit into the record. 

Mr. Deitch said it was VMCRC#2021-1824. 

Mr. Guvernator requested Mr. Deitch give his Town of Chincoteague permit number as well, 

but Mr. Deitch said that he did not have it yet. 

 
Mr. Guvernator made the suggestion to Mr. Deitch to have all his permits before starting any 

work. Deitch said they were nowhere near ready to start doing any work yet. 

 
Mr. Guvernator asked how soon the dredging would be taking place. 

Mr. McCabe said maybe July, but that Mr. Fisher was pretty booked. 

Mr. Frederick asked if there were any questions for Mr. Deitch. 

Mr. Taylor told Mr. Deitch that he would have to be added to the applicant’s application/permit 

for the dredging on his property to be removed as part of the applicant’s project. 

 
Mr. Taylor added the Board can only approve what is on the application. For the board to 

approve Mr. Deitch’s request the applicant would have to add Mr. Deitch to the application 

and resubmit. 

 
Mr. Deitch said that he was not interested in paying for it. 

 

Mr. Byrd asked Mr. Deitch why he did not want to pay for it, and Mr. Deitch said because 



4 | P a g e  

they, (the applicant), caused the problem. 

 
Mr. Frederick asked Mr. Guvernator to go back to the plan view. 

 
Mr. Frederick then asked Mr. McCabe if he would like to respond to what Mr. Deitch had to 

say. 

 
Mr. McCabe said he had two quick points: 

1. Mr. McCabe was not sure where the jurisdiction would lie as far as mean low and 

mean high water, because they had not done that. With that being said Mr. McCabe 

did not know where the Wetlands Board’s jurisdiction was versus where VMRC’s and 

the CORPS jurisdiction was. 

2. Mr. McCabe said he could not make a commitment without talking to the owners. Mr. 

McCabe promised that he would talk to them and have a conversation with them about 

making that commitment. 

Mr. McCabe said they would have to amend their current application with the CORPS and 

VMRC or do a separate application and coordinate that way. 

CHAIRMAN FREDERICK CLOSED THE FLOOR TO PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

Mr. Frederick said after seeing where the spoils, he assumed that came from the insertion of the 

bulkhead, you see the natural lay of the bottom, there is a slight rise and then an indentation 

along the property out to where the kink is in the bulkhead. 

 

Mr. Frederick said that he could only assume that the rise came from the materials not placed 

back at the foot of the bulkhead. 

 

Mr. McCabe said the bulkhead was driven in. He added that he was not there and that he could 

not testify that it was or was not. 

 

Mr. Frederick asked Mr. Guvernator for guidance. 

 

Mr. Guvernator said technically, the comments received [during the meeting] from a citizen do 

not apply to the application. However, the Board could advise, guide, or request something out 

of the applicant or applicant’s agent. 

 

Mr. McCabe chimed into say that he had received a text [message] from his client and wanted to 

read it into the record: 

 Applicant: “We will remove trash as long as everyone is okay with it.” 

 

Mr. Frederick asked Mr. Guvernator if he thought Mr. Deitch needed to submit a written 

complaint for the removal of the derelict material. 

 

Mr. Guvernator said in this case he would recommend that Mr. Deitch try to resolve it, as it 

appears to be progressing, and if that was not to his satisfactory Mr. Deitch would come to his 

department and make a formal complaint. 



5 | P a g e  

Mr. Benjamin Nettleton, Virginia Marine Resources Commission (VMRC), appeared before the 

Wetlands Board and was sworn in by Chairman Frederick. 

 

Mr. Frederick asked Mr. Nettleton if this was something he thought VMRC would require a 

permit for. 

 

Mr. Nettleton said that was his first time seeing the photos, but that it was most likely out of 

VMRC’s jurisdiction. He said they would probably want to see the proper E&S controls and plan 

to make sure it was not turned into a dredging project. 

 

On a motion made by Mr. Taylor and seconded by Mr. Getek, the Wetlands Board voted to 

issue a permit (valid for (1) year, for Chincoteague Hotel LC (Key West Cottages) VMRC# 

2022-0005, proposed dredging a 15,575 feet area to a -4.0 elevation to allow for access of 

boats to a new cottage project with the following conditions: 

1. On page 17, change 0 square feet of non-vegetated wetlands to 98 square 

feet 

2. Pay $1,764.00 into the mitigation fund for 98 square feet of impacts to 

non-vegetated wetlands 

The property is located on Chincoteague Island, VA 23336, tax map#(s) 30A5-A-94A. 

 

B. Grand Bay Properties LLC - VMRC# 2022-0421 
Proposed construction of a new bulkhead in the same footprint of the existing failed bulkhead 

 

Mr. Guvernator gave a summary of the project stating this is one the board had seen before so they were 

familiar with the lot, but he had photos if needed. 

Mr. Raymond Britton, Jr., (BIC, Inc.), appeared before the Wetlands Board on behalf of the applicant and 

was sworn in by Chairman Frederick. 

Mr. Britton said the lots were located in Captain’s Cove on Seaview Street where the bulkheads had eroded 

badly. 

Mr. Britton said this was previously approved, but it was revoked by VMRC. 
 

Mr. Frederick asked to confirm that the new bulkhead was going in the same footprint and Mr. Britton 

confirmed that was correct. 

Mr. Frederick asked Mr. Guvernator about a map showing two feet in front/forward from the original. 

Mr. Guvernator said he could not confirm the CORPS’ comment on that. 

Mr. Frederick said the drawings presented to them, (the Board), had showed the bulkhead in line with the 

properties on either side with no mention of two feet. 

Mr. Guvernator said his staff confirmed the square footage in the field and agreed with the numbers. 
 

CHAIRMAN FREDERICK OPENED THE FLOOR TO PUBLIC COMMENT 

Mr. Frederick asked if there was anyone who wanted to comment on application 2022-0421. 

 
Mr. Chris McCabe stood to speak on his personal behalf and not that of Captain’s Cove or the 

applicant. 



6 | P a g e  

Mr. McCabe wanted to update the board on the updating of the Captain Cove Golf & Yacht 

Club’s jurisdictional determination. 

 

Mr. McCable wanted the board to know that they had been pursuing the construction project 

authorization for Seaview Street, (North & South) once they have Stormwater approval. 

 

CHAIRMAN FREDERICK CLOSED THE FLOOR TO PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

Mr. Taylor asked Mr. McCabe about the work he was doing. 

 

Mr. McCabe said the jurisdictional determination that was approved in 2006 for the previous 

development group was extended. Jurisdictional determinations have a five-year life span, but 

was extended to 2016. CORPS said they would not be extending again so the Captain’s Cove 

HOA took it upon themselves to start the update. 

 

Mr. McCabe said his company was contracted to help in December of 2020. 

 

Mr. Frederick asked if there was any consideration for establishment of a Living Shoreline on 

any of the lots. 

 

Mr. Britton said no, it was not a good location due to the strong northeast winds. 

 

Mr. Getek said that he went out [to the site] the day before the meeting and the wind was brutal; 

there was no way a Living Shoreline could survive that area. 

 

Mr. Frederick asked Mr. Guvernator if he wanted to speak on the question from the CORPS. 

Mr. Guvernator said he would summarize it. 

Mr. Guvernator said he learned at the meeting, through VMRC, that the CORPS of Engineers 

had withdrawn the application for these three parcels. He believed they made a determination 

that the project would not qualify through their general permit process. 

 

Mr. Guvernator said the CORPS was requiring the applicant to apply for a standard individual 

permit. 

 

Mr. Frederick asked if there were other considerations that the County had on the application. 

 

Mr. Guvernator said his office sent an incomplete letter to the applicant’s agent requesting 6 
items: 

1. Possible Living Shoreline (Mr. Britton address at today’s meeting) 

2. Split the project into 3 individual site plans 

3. Provide cubic yards of fill for each individual site to facilitate the building permit 

process. (County Attorney said there is no law that allowed that to be required so it was 

waived) 

4. Questioned the determination of bulkhead being serviceable in Part 3 of the application 

5. Low tide and high tide are missing from the profile view 

6. No drawing scale on the plan view 



7 | P a g e  

Mr. Frderick asked Mr. Guvernator if any of these items were reason for a continuation. 

 

Mr. Guvernator said they should be considered as reasons for a continuation due to the amount 

of potential compensation fees associated with the project. Mr. Guvernator said he wanted to 

make sure they get it right, however, in the past applicants have been allowed, on the day of, to 

make revisions to the application if it is put into a motion. 

 

Mr. Byrd said the question on whether or not the bulkhead was serviceable or not was not minor. 

Mr. Frederick asked how it should be dealt with. 

Mr. Guvernator said for his office, the applicant/agent would send a letter explaining it or submit 

that page of the application revised to concur with his staff’s review. 

 

Mr. Frederick asked Mr. Guvernator would he advise separating this into 3 lots under one permit. 

 

Mr. Guvernator said he believed that is what was done before, but 3 separate permits would be 

issued. 

 

Mr. Britton said that you could see that a bulkhead was there. 

 

Mr. Frederick said in the photos he took there were enough pilings there to show the orientation 

and alignment. 

 

Mr. Getek said that it was a non-functioning bulkhead. 

 

Mr. Frederick asked Mr. Guvernator if he would like the applicant to address if the bulkhead was 

serviceable or non-serviceable in a letter. 

 

Mr. Guvernator said if the applicant testified today he would be satisfied. 

 

Mr. Getek said he had a few questions on the details for Ms. Nunnally to answer. 

 

Mr. Getek asked, in this particular case, if they should be concerned with mean high water or 

should they go to 1.5 for the Board’s jurisdiction. 

 

Mrs. Beth Nunnally, (Environmental Programs), appeared before the Wetlands Board and was 

sworn in by Chairman Frederick. 

 

Ms. Nunnally said the site was so dynamic that everything was being washed away, and that she 
did not see any vegetated wetlands. 

 

Mr. Ward said he did not see why the application should be divided by the lot. They had the 

information, they know every day the applicant was losing additional land, and the longer it is 

put off more damage would be done. 

 

Mr. Byrd agreed and did not see why it needed to be separated either. 

Mr. Frederick asked if everyone was happy with the 3 in 1. 



8 | P a g e  

On a motion made by Mr. Getek and seconded by Mr. Taylor, the Wetlands Board voted to 

issue a permit (valid for (1) year, for Grand Bay Properties LLC - VMRC# 2022-0421, 

proposed construction of a new bulkhead in the same footprint of the existing failed 

bulkhead with the following conditions: 

1. Pay $86,256.00 into the mitigation fund for 4,792 square feet of impacts to 

non-vegetated wetlands 

2. Revision of drawings 

a. Mean High and Mean Low water added to the profile 

3. Cubic yards of fill per lot 

The property is located in Greenbackville, VA 23356, tax map#(s) 5A1-1-756, 5A1-1-757, 

and 5A1-1-758. 

 

 
5. OTHER BUSINESS 

A. Clarification on voting to extend a permit 

Mr. Guvernator said that he took this question to the County Attorney. 

 

Mr. Guvernator said as stated in the Board’s permit issuance motion, it is good for 1-year from 

the date of the meeting. The 10 day waiting period starts on the same day. 

 

Mr. Guvernator said what she, (the County Attorney), said for extensions the date of expiration 

should be stated at the time of the extension. If it is not stated it will default to 1-year from the 

meeting date. 

 

Mr. Guvernator said to do a better job with the consistency of the extension both the applicant 

and agent will receive an amendment. The amendment was approved by the County Attorney. 

 

Mr. Guvernator said it admen’s the permit that was issued based on the date of the motion. 

 

Mr. Guvernator said that there was some discussion at the state level on whether or not the Board 

needed to do that. Some municipalities handle that administratively without coming to the Board. 

 

Mr. Guvernator said that he and the County Attorney feel these need to come to the Board so that 

the Board knows what is going on. 

 

B. Board Member Appointed by BOS 

Mr. Guvernator stated that on May 18, 2022, the Accomack County Board of Supervisors 

unanimously voted to appoint Mr. [George] Hank Badger to the Wetlands Board to fill the 

position being vacated by Mr. Frederick. 

 
Mr. Guvernator said that Mr. Badger’s 5-year term starts July 1, 2022. 

 
Mr. Guvernator suggested inviting Mr. Badger to the June 23, 2022 board meeting to see how 

the Board operates. 

 
Mr. Frederick said they could officially welcome him to the board at the June meeting. 

Mr. Ward said he thought it would be a good idea. 



9 | P a g e  

Mr. Guvernator said he would extend an invitation for Mr. Badger to attend. 

 
6. NEXT MEETING 

The next Wetlands Board meeting is scheduled for Thursday, June 23, 2022 at 10:00 a.m. in the Accomack 

County Board Chambers, Room 104, in Accomac, VA. 

 

7. ADJOURNMENT 

On a motion made by Mr. Byrd and seconded by Mr. Getek, the Wetlands Board voted to adjourn the 

meeting. 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 11:12 a.m. 
 

 

Earl Frederick, Chairman 
 

 

Chontese Ridley, Environmental Permit Specialist 


